
AGENDA



REMOTE MEETING NOTICE 

This meeting will be accessible by remote video conferencing. Please be advised that 
while the District will endeavor to ensure these remote participation methods are 
available, the District does not guarantee that they will be technically feasible or work 
all the time.  Further, the District reserves the right to terminate these remote 
participation methods (Subject to Brown Act Restrictions) at any time and for 
whatever reason.  The public may observe and participate in this meeting remotely via 
Zoom as set forth below. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USING ZOOM 
 Join the meeting using the link below. 
 You must have audio and microphone capabilities on the device you are using 

to join the meeting. 
 When you join the meeting make sure that you join the meeting with audio and 

follow the prompts to test your speaker & microphone prior to joining the 
meeting. 

TO SPEAK DURING PUBLIC COMMENT USING ZOOM 
 The Board President will announce when it is time for Public Comment. 
 Click on the Raise Hand icon if you would like to speak during Public Comment. 
 Your name will be called on when it’s your turn to speak. 
 When your name is called, you will be prompted to unmute yourself. 
 You will have three (3) minutes to speak.  When your time is up, you will be 

muted. 

TO SPEAK ON AN ITEM USING ZOOM 
 The Board President will call the item and staff will begin the staff report. 
 Click on the Raise Hand icon if you would like to speak on the item. 
 Your name will be called on when it’s your turn to speak. 
 When your name is called, you will be prompted to unmute yourself. 
 You will have three (3) minutes to speak.  When your time is up, you will be 

muted. 
 You will repeat this process for each item you want to speak on. 

FOR OPEN SESSION PARTICIPATION  
Join Meeting Electronically at: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82943208367?pwd=T1BWby9sQkZxcUI1Y2hlVi
tHVm0vUT09  
 
Meeting ID:  829 4320 8367 
 
Passcode:  032921 

 

Please attend in Person or by submitting your comment via email to: 
RMangus@GoletaSanitary.Org 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82943208367?pwd=T1BWby9sQkZxcUI1Y2hlVitHVm0vUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82943208367?pwd=T1BWby9sQkZxcUI1Y2hlVitHVm0vUT09


 

 
A G E N D A 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 
OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT 

A PUBLIC AGENCY 
 

One William Moffett Place 
Goleta, California 93117 

 
May 20, 2024 

 
CALL TO ORDER:   6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS 
 
BOARD MEMBERS: Edward Fuller 

Jerry D. Smith 
Steven T. Majoewsky 
Dean Nevins 
Sharon Rose 

 
CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING  
 
The Board will consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 06, 
2024. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Members of the public may address the Board on items within 
the jurisdiction of the Board.  Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited 
from taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  Please limit your remarks to three 
(3) minutes and if you wish, state your name and address for the record. 
 
POSTING OF AGENDA – The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the main 
gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the District’s web site 72 hours in advance of 
the meeting. 
 
BUSINESS: 
 
1. PRESENTATION ON ROSENBERG’S RULES OF ORDER BY DISTRICT 

LEGAL COUNSEL 
(Board may take action on this item.) 
 

2. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF 801 POINSETTIA WAY 
A.P.N. 067-030-041 
(Board may take action on this item.) 
 

3. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES CONTRACT 
(Board may take action on this item.) 

 
 



Regular Meeting Agenda 
May 20, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
5. LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

 
6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTOR'S REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF  
 DIRECTOR’S ACTIVITIES 
 
7. PRESIDENT'S REPORT 
 
8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
9. CORRESPONDENCE 

(The Board will consider correspondence received by and sent by the District since 
the last Board Meeting.) 

 
10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND 

RATIFICATION OF CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT 
 (The Board will be asked to ratify claims.) 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Persons with a disability who require any disability-related modification or accommodation, including 
auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the meeting are asked to contact the District’s Finance 
Director at least 3 hours prior to the meeting by telephone at (805) 967-4519 or by email at 
info@goletasanitary.org. 
 
 
Any public records which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of 
the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will be 
available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at the District’s office located at One William 
Moffett Place, Goleta, California 93117.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@goletasanitary.org


MINUTES



 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 

GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT 
A PUBLIC AGENCY 

DISTRICT OFFICE CONFERENCE ROOM 
ONE WILLIAM MOFFETT PLACE 

GOLETA, CALIFORNIA 93117 
 

May 6, 2024 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: President Fuller called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Edward Fuller, Jerry Smith (arrived at 6:33 p.m.), Steven 

T. Majoewsky, Dean Nevins, Sharon Rose 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:   None 
 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Wagner, General Manager/District Engineer, Rob 

Mangus, Finance Director/Board Secretary, Reese 
Wilson, Senior Project Engineer and Jeff Ferre, General 
Counsel (via Zoom) 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Tom Evans, Director, Goleta Water District (via Zoom) 
 David Bearman, M.D., Director, Goleta West Sanitary 

District 
  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Director Majoewsky made a motion, seconded by Director 

Nevins, to approve the minutes of the Regular Board 
meeting of 04/15/2024. The motion carried by the 
following vote: 

 
(24/05/2220) 

 
 AYES:       4       Fuller, Majoewsky, Nevins, Rose 
 NOES: None 

 ABSENT:  1 Smith 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 
POSTING OF AGENDA: The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the 

main gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the 
District’s website 72 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None  
 
BUSINESS: 
 
1. CONSIDERATION OF THE 2024 ANNUAL PLANNING MEETING SUMMARY REPORT 

Mr. Wagner gave the presentation.  No Board action was taken. 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 6, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 
G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\Minutes 2024\2024-05-06 Regular Minutes.docx 

2. CONSIDERATION OF BOARD MEMBER MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT FOR 
ATTENDANCE AT GOVERNING BOARD MEETINGS 
Mr. Wagner gave the staff report. 
 
Director Smith made a motion, seconded by Director Rose to direct staff to return with 
action items necessary to remove mileage reimbursements from the list of pre-approved 
expense reimbursements for Regular, Special and Committee meetings. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
(24/05/2221) 
 
AYES:  5  Fuller, Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Rose  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
 

3. CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 24-714 AMENDING THE 
SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY RATE FOR EMPLOYEES WORKING WEEKENDS 
AND/OR EVENING SCHEDULES  

 Mr. Wagner gave the staff report. 
 
Director Majoewsky made a motion, seconded by Director Nevins to approve, as 
corrected, and adopt Resolution No. 24-714 amending the shift differential pay rate for 
employees working weekends and/or evening schedules. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
(24/05/2222) 
 
AYES:  5  Fuller, Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Rose 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Mr. Wagner gave the report. 
 
 

5. LEGAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 
Mr. Ferre reported on a recent California Attorney General opinion, giving guidance, on 
legal issues, including the Brown Act.  The opinion was given to the Ventura Chamber of 
Commerce in which the Mayor and all Council members attended a State of the City 
event that was not free.  The opinion was that the meeting should have been noticed.    

 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 6, 2024 
Page 3 
 

 
G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\Minutes 2024\2024-05-06 Regular Minutes.docx 

6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF 
DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES 
 
Director Smith – No report. 
 
Director Rose – No report. 
 
Director Nevins – No report. 
 
Director Majoewsky - No report. 
 
 

7. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Fuller - No report. 
 
 

8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
A request was made to have a presentation and review on Rosenberg’s Rules of Order. 
 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE 
The Board reviewed and discussed the list of correspondence to and from the District in 
the agenda.  
 
 

10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND RATIFICATION OF 
CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT 

 
Director Smith made a motion, seconded by Director Rose, to ratify and approve the 
claims, for the period 04/16/2024 to 05/06/2024 as follows: 
 
Running Expense Fund #4640    $        441,501.98 
Capital Reserve Fund #4650    $                 56.40 
Retiree Health Insurance Sinking Fund #4660  $          13,645.20 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
(24/05/2223) 
 
 
AYES:  5  Fuller, Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Rose 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
 
  



Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 6, 2024 
Page 4 
 

 
G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\Minutes 2024\2024-05-06 Regular Minutes.docx 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 
 
      ATTEST 
 
 
             
Edward Fuller      Robert O. Mangus, Jr. 
Governing Board President  Governing Board Secretary 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #1



AGENDA ITEM: 1 
 
MEETING DATE: May 20, 2024 
 
I. NATURE OF ITEM 
 

Presentation on Rosenberg’s Rules of Order by District Legal Counsel 
 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Prior to 2015, Section 2-1.5.8 of the District’s Administrative Code provided that 
meetings of the Governing Board would be conducted in accordance with 
Robert’s Rules of Order.  In 2015 the Board amended Section 2-1.5.8 to provide 
that Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Rosenberg’s Rules of 
Order: Simple Parliamentary Procedures for the 21st Century, insofar as such 
rules are compatible with the District’s Principal Act and the other laws of the 
State of California.  At its meeting on May 5, 2024, the Board asked staff to 
return with a summary presentation on Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  District 
Legal Counsel Ryan Guiboa will present a summary of these rules and will be 
prepared to answer any questions the Board may have. 

 
III. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the Board consider the presentation of Rosenberg’s 
Rules of Order and discuss any questions the Board may have.  

 
IV. REFERENCE MATERIALS 
 

Rosenberg’s Rules of Order: Simple Parliamentary Procedures for the 21st 
Century 

 
 
  



Rosenberg’s Rules of Order
REVISED 2011

Simple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for the 21st Century

By Judge Dave Rosenberg



ii

MISSION and CORE BELIEFS
To expand and protect local control for cities through education and advocacy to enhance the quality of life for all Californians.

VISION
To be recognized and respected as the leading advocate for the common interests of California’s cities.

About the League of California Cities
Established in 1898, the League of California Cities is a member organization that represents California’s incorporated cities. 

The League strives to protect the local authority and automony of city government and help California’s cities effectively 

serve their residents. In addition to advocating on cities’ behalf at the state capitol, the League provides its members with 

professional development programs and information resources, conducts education conferences and research, and publishes 

Western City magazine.

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

About the Author
Dave Rosenberg is a Superior Court Judge in Yolo County. He has served as presiding judge of his court, and as 

presiding judge of the Superior Court Appellate Division. He also has served as chair of the Trial Court Presiding Judges 

Advisory Committee (the committee composed of all 58 California presiding judges) and as an advisory member of the 

California Judicial Council. Prior to his appointment to the bench, Rosenberg was member of the Yolo County Board of 

Supervisors, where he served two terms as chair. Rosenberg also served on the Davis City Council, including two terms 

as mayor. He has served on the senior staff of two governors, and worked for 19 years in private law practice. Rosenberg 

has served as a member and chair of numerous state, regional and local boards. Rosenberg chaired the California State 

Lottery Commission, the California Victim Compensation and Government Claims Board, the Yolo-Solano Air Quality 

Management District, the Yolo County Economic Development Commission, and the Yolo County Criminal Justice 

Cabinet. For many years, he has taught classes on parliamentary procedure and has served as parliamentarian for large 

and small bodies.



1

Table of Contents

About the Author ............................................................................................................ii

Introduction ....................................................................................................................2

Establishing a Quorum ...................................................................................................2

The Role of the Chair ......................................................................................................2

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion ........................................................2

Motions in General .........................................................................................................3

The Three Basic Motions ................................................................................................3

Multiple Motions Before the Body .................................................................................4

To Debate or Not to Debate ............................................................................................4

Majority and Super-Majority Votes ...............................................................................5

Counting Votes ................................................................................................................5

The Motion to Reconsider ..............................................................................................6

Courtesy and Decorum ..................................................................................................7

Special Notes About Public Input ..................................................................................7



2

Establishing a Quorum
The starting point for a meeting is the establishment of a quorum. 
A quorum is defined as the minimum number of members of the 
body who must be present at a meeting for business to be legally 
transacted. The default rule is that a quorum is one more than half 
the body. For example, in a five-member body a quorum is three. 
When the body has three members present, it can legally transact 
business. If the body has less than a quorum of members present, it 
cannot legally transact business. And even if the body has a quorum 
to begin the meeting, the body can lose the quorum during the 
meeting when a member departs (or even when a member leaves the 
dais). When that occurs the body loses its ability to transact business 
until and unless a quorum is reestablished. 

The default rule, identified above, however, gives way to a specific 
rule of the body that establishes a quorum. For example, the rules of 
a particular five-member body may indicate that a quorum is four 
members for that particular body. The body must follow the rules it 
has established for its quorum. In the absence of such a specific rule, 
the quorum is one more than half the members of the body.

The Role of the Chair
While all members of the body should know and understand the 
rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the chair of the body who is 
charged with applying the rules of conduct of the meeting. The chair 
should be well versed in those rules. For all intents and purposes, the 
chair makes the final ruling on the rules every time the chair states an 
action. In fact, all decisions by the chair are final unless overruled by 
the body itself. 

Since the chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy 
for the chair to play a less active role in the debate and discussion 
than other members of the body. This does not mean that the chair 
should not participate in the debate or discussion. To the contrary, as 
a member of the body, the chair has the full right to participate in the 
debate, discussion and decision-making of the body. What the chair 
should do, however, is strive to be the last to speak at the discussion 
and debate stage. The chair should not make or second a motion 
unless the chair is convinced that no other member of the body will 
do so at that point in time.

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion
Formal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. 
Informal meetings may have only an oral or understood agenda. In 
either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda 
constitutes the body’s agreed-upon roadmap for the meeting. Each 
agenda item can be handled by the chair in the following basic 
format:

Introduction

The rules of procedure at meetings should be simple enough for 
most people to understand. Unfortunately, that has not always been 
the case. Virtually all clubs, associations, boards, councils and bodies 
follow a set of rules — Robert’s Rules of Order — which are embodied 
in a small, but complex, book. Virtually no one I know has actually 
read this book cover to cover. Worse yet, the book was written for 
another time and for another purpose. If one is chairing or running 
a parliament, then Robert’s Rules of Order is a dandy and quite useful 
handbook for procedure in that complex setting. On the other hand, 
if one is running a meeting of say, a five-member body with a few 
members of the public in attendance, a simplified version of the rules 
of parliamentary procedure is in order.

Hence, the birth of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.

What follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, 
based on my decades of experience chairing meetings in state and 
local government. These rules have been simplified for the smaller 
bodies we chair or in which we participate, slimmed down for the 
21st Century, yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have 
grown accustomed. Interestingly enough, Rosenberg’s Rules has found 
a welcoming audience. Hundreds of cities, counties, special districts, 
committees, boards, commissions, neighborhood associations and 
private corporations and companies have adopted Rosenberg’s Rules 
in lieu of Robert’s Rules because they have found them practical, 
logical, simple, easy to learn and user friendly. 

This treatise on modern parliamentary procedure is built on a 
foundation supported by the following four pillars: 

1. Rules should establish order. The first purpose of rules of 
parliamentary procedure is to establish a framework for the 
orderly conduct of meetings.

2. Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding 
and participation. Complex rules create two classes: those 
who understand and participate; and those who do not fully 
understand and do not fully participate.

3. Rules should be user friendly. That is, the rules must be simple 
enough that the public is invited into the body and feels that it 
has participated in the process.

4. Rules should enforce the will of the majority while protecting 
the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of 
procedure is to encourage discussion and to facilitate decision 
making by the body. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules 
must enable the majority to express itself and fashion a result, 
while permitting the minority to also express itself, but not 
dominate, while fully participating in the process.



3

Ninth, the chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the “ayes” and then 
asking for the “nays” normally does this. If members of the body do 
not vote, then they “abstain.” Unless the rules of the body provide 
otherwise (or unless a super majority is required as delineated later 
in these rules), then a simple majority (as defined in law or the rules 
of the body as delineated later in these rules) determines whether the 
motion passes or is defeated. 

Tenth, the chair should announce the result of the vote and what 
action (if any) the body has taken. In announcing the result, the chair 
should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who 
voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement might take 
the following form: “The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with Smith 
and Jones dissenting. We have passed the motion requiring a 10-day 
notice for all future meetings of this body.”

Motions in General
Motions are the vehicles for decision making by a body. It is usually 
best to have a motion before the body prior to commencing 
discussion of an agenda item. This helps the body focus.

Motions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the chair 
should recognize the member of the body. Second, the member 
of the body makes a motion by preceding the member’s desired 
approach with the words “I move … ”

A typical motion might be: “I move that we give a 10-day notice in 
the future for all our meetings.”

The chair usually initiates the motion in one of three ways:

1. Inviting the members of the body to make a motion, for 
example, “A motion at this time would be in order.” 

2. Suggesting a motion to the members of the body, “A motion 
would be in order that we give a 10-day notice in the future for all 
our meetings.” 

3. Making the motion. As noted, the chair has every right as a 
member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do 
so only if the chair wishes to make a motion on an item but is 
convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step 
forward to do so at a particular time.

The Three Basic Motions
There are three motions that are the most common and recur often 
at meetings:

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a 
decision for the body’s consideration. A basic motion might be: “I 
move that we create a five-member committee to plan and put on 
our annual fundraiser.” 

First, the chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and 
should clearly state what the agenda item subject is. The chair should 
then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in 
considering the agenda item.

Second, following that agenda format, the chair should invite the 
appropriate person or persons to report on the item, including any 
recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or 
persons may be the chair, a member of the body, a staff person, or a 
committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item.

Third, the chair should ask members of the body if they have any 
technical questions of clarification. At this point, members of the 
body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who 
reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given 
time to respond.

Fourth, the chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at 
a formal meeting, should open the public meeting for public input. 
If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to 
the subject, the chair may limit the time of public speakers. At the 
conclusion of the public comments, the chair should announce that 
public input has concluded (or the public hearing, as the case may be, 
is closed).

Fifth, the chair should invite a motion. The chair should announce 
the name of the member of the body who makes the motion.

Sixth, the chair should determine if any member of the body wishes 
to second the motion. The chair should announce the name of the 
member of the body who seconds the motion. It is normally good 
practice for a motion to require a second before proceeding to 
ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested 
in a particular approach. However, a second is not an absolute 
requirement, and the chair can proceed with consideration and vote 
on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the 
discretion of the chair.

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the chair should make 
sure everyone understands the motion. 

This is done in one of three ways:

1. The chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it;

2. The chair can repeat the motion; or

3. The chair can ask the secretary or the clerk of the body to repeat 
the motion.

Eighth, the chair should now invite discussion of the motion by the 
body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the discussion has 
ended, the chair should announce that the body will vote on the 
motion. If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, then 
the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no 
need to repeat the motion. If there has been substantial discussion, 
then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the 
motion by repeating it.



4

First, the chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the 
floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and debate, a vote 
would be taken first on the third motion. If the substitute motion 
passed, it would be a substitute for the basic motion and would 
eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second 
motion (which sought to amend the first motion), and the action on 
the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of 
the third motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on 
the first or second motions. 

Second, if the substitute motion failed, the chair would then deal 
with the second (now the last) motion on the floor, the motion 
to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on the 
amendment (should the committee be five or 10 members). If the 
motion to amend passed, the chair would then move to consider the 
main motion (the first motion) as amended. If the motion to amend 
failed, the chair would then move to consider the main motion (the 
first motion) in its original format, not amended.

Third, the chair would now deal with the first motion that was placed 
on the floor. The original motion would either be in its original 
format (five-member committee), or if amended, would be in its 
amended format (10-member committee). The question on the floor 
for discussion and decision would be whether a committee should 
plan and put on the annual fundraiser.

To Debate or Not to Debate
The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and 
debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to amend, and substitute 
motions are all eligible, each in their turn, for full discussion before 
and by the body. The debate can continue as long as members of the 
body wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the chair that 
it is time to move on and take action.

There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate 
on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a desire of the 
body to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that 
is, when the following motions are made and seconded, the chair 
must immediately call for a vote of the body without debate on the 
motion): 

Motion to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled meeting. It 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately take a recess. Normally, the chair determines the length 
of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a 
simple majority vote.

Motion to fix the time to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires 
the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific time set in the 
motion. For example, the motion might be: “I move we adjourn this 
meeting at midnight.” It requires a simple majority vote.

The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion 
that is before the body, they would move to amend it. A motion 
to amend might be: “I move that we amend the motion to have a 
10-member committee.” A motion to amend takes the basic motion 
that is before the body and seeks to change it in some way.

The substitute motion. If a member wants to completely do away 
with the basic motion that is before the body, and put a new motion 
before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute 
motion might be: “I move a substitute motion that we cancel the 
annual fundraiser this year.” 

“Motions to amend” and “substitute motions” are often confused, but 
they are quite different, and their effect (if passed) is quite different. 
A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but 
modify it in some way. A substitute motion seeks to throw out the 
basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion 
for it. The decision as to whether a motion is really a “motion to 
amend” or a “substitute motion” is left to the chair. So if a member 
makes what that member calls a “motion to amend,” but the chair 
determines that it is really a “substitute motion,” then the chair’s 
designation governs.

A “friendly amendment” is a practical parliamentary tool that is 
simple, informal, saves time and avoids bogging a meeting down 
with numerous formal motions. It works in the following way: In the 
discussion on a pending motion, it may appear that a change to the 
motion is desirable or may win support for the motion from some 
members. When that happens, a member who has the floor may 
simply say, “I want to suggest a friendly amendment to the motion.” 
The member suggests the friendly amendment, and if the maker and 
the person who seconded the motion pending on the floor accepts 
the friendly amendment, that now becomes the pending motion on 
the floor. If either the maker or the person who seconded rejects the 
proposed friendly amendment, then the proposer can formally move 
to amend.

Multiple Motions Before the Body
There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same time. 
The chair can reject a fourth motion until the chair has dealt 
with the three that are on the floor and has resolved them. This 
rule has practical value. More than three motions on the floor at 
any given time is confusing and unwieldy for almost everyone, 
including the chair. 

When there are two or three motions on the floor (after motions and 
seconds) at the same time, the vote should proceed first on the last 
motion that is made. For example, assume the first motion is a basic 
“motion to have a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser.” During the discussion of this motion, a member 
might make a second motion to “amend the main motion to have a 
10-member committee, not a five-member committee to plan and 
put on our annual fundraiser.” And perhaps, during that discussion, a 
member makes yet a third motion as a “substitute motion that we not 
have an annual fundraiser this year.” The proper procedure would be 
as follows:



5

Motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of the 
body (such as the chair), nominations are in order either from a 
nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to 
close nominations effectively cuts off the right of the minority to 
nominate officers and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to object to the consideration of a question. Normally, such 
a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable item can be tabled or 
defeated straight up. However, when members of a body do not even 
want an item on the agenda to be considered, then such a motion is 
in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires 
a two-thirds vote to pass. If the body has its own rules of order, 
conduct or procedure, this motion allows the body to suspend the 
rules for a particular purpose. For example, the body (a private club) 
might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club 
members. A motion to suspend the rules would be in order to allow 
a non-club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular 
date or on a particular agenda item.

Counting Votes
The matter of counting votes starts simple, but can become 
complicated.

Usually, it’s pretty easy to determine whether a particular motion 
passed or whether it was defeated. If a simple majority vote is needed 
to pass a motion, then one vote more than 50 percent of the body is 
required. For example, in a five-member body, if the vote is three in 
favor and two opposed, the motion passes. If it is two in favor and 
three opposed, the motion is defeated.

If a two-thirds majority vote is needed to pass a motion, then how 
many affirmative votes are required? The simple rule of thumb is to 
count the “no” votes and double that count to determine how many 
“yes” votes are needed to pass a particular motion. For example, in 
a seven-member body, if two members vote “no” then the “yes” vote 
of at least four members is required to achieve a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass the motion. 

What about tie votes? In the event of a tie, the motion always fails since 
an affirmative vote is required to pass any motion. For example, in a 
five-member body, if the vote is two in favor and two opposed, with 
one member absent, the motion is defeated.

Vote counting starts to become complicated when members 
vote “abstain” or in the case of a written ballot, cast a blank (or 
unreadable) ballot. Do these votes count, and if so, how does one 
count them? The starting point is always to check the statutes.

In California, for example, for an action of a board of supervisors to 
be valid and binding, the action must be approved by a majority of the 
board. (California Government Code Section 25005.) Typically, this 
means three of the five members of the board must vote affirmatively 
in favor of the action. A vote of 2-1 would not be sufficient. A vote of 
3-0 with two abstentions would be sufficient. In general law cities in 

Motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the 
agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to be placed on “hold.” 
The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come 
back to the body. “I move we table this item until our regular meeting 
in October.” Or the motion can contain no specific time for the 
return of the item, in which case a motion to take the item off the 
table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future 
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to 
say, “I move the previous question” or “I move the question” or “I call 
the question” or sometimes someone simply shouts out “question.” 
As a practical matter, when a member calls out one of these phrases, 
the chair can expedite matters by treating it as a “request” rather 
than as a formal motion. The chair can simply inquire of the body, 
“any further discussion?” If no one wishes to have further discussion, 
then the chair can go right to the pending motion that is on the floor. 
However, if even one person wishes to discuss the pending motion 
further, then at that point, the chair should treat the call for the 
“question” as a formal motion, and proceed to it. 

When a member of the body makes such a motion (“I move the 
previous question”), the member is really saying: “I’ve had enough 
debate. Let’s get on with the vote.” When such a motion is made, the 
chair should ask for a second, stop debate, and vote on the motion to 
limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a two-thirds vote of 
the body. 

Note:  A motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For 
example: “I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes.” 
Even in this format, the motion to limit debate requires a two-
thirds vote of the body. A similar motion is a motion to object to 
consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, 
precludes the body from even considering an item on the agenda. It 
also requires a two-thirds vote.

Majority and Super Majority Votes
In a democracy, a simple majority vote determines a question. A tie 
vote means the motion fails. So in a seven-member body, a vote of 
4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the 
motion fails. If one member is absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion 
still fails.

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. 
The exceptions come up when the body is taking an action which 
effectively cuts off the ability of a minority of the body to take an 
action or discuss an item. These extraordinary motions require a 
two-thirds majority (a super majority) to pass:

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member says, “I move the 
previous question,” or “I move the question,” or “I call the question,” 
or “I move to limit debate,” it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the 
ability of the minority to discuss an item, and it requires a two-thirds 
vote to pass.



6

Now, exactly how does a member cast an “abstention” vote? 
Any time a member votes “abstain” or says, “I abstain,” that is an 
abstention. However, if a member votes “present” that is also treated 
as an abstention (the member is essentially saying, “Count me for 
purposes of a quorum, but my vote on the issue is abstain.”) In fact, 
any manifestation of intention not to vote either “yes” or “no” on 
the pending motion may be treated by the chair as an abstention. If 
written ballots are cast, a blank or unreadable ballot is counted as an 
abstention as well. 

Can a member vote “absent” or “count me as absent?” Interesting 
question. The ruling on this is up to the chair. The better approach is 
for the chair to count this as if the member had left his/her chair and 
is actually “absent.” That, of course, affects the quorum. However, the 
chair may also treat this as a vote to abstain, particularly if the person 
does not actually leave the dais. 

The Motion to Reconsider
There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of 
explanation all by itself; the motion to reconsider. A tenet of 
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion, debate 
and a vote, there must be some closure to the issue. And so, after a 
vote is taken, the matter is deemed closed, subject only to reopening 
if a proper motion to consider is made and passed.

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass like other 
garden-variety motions, but there are two special rules that apply 
only to the motion to reconsider. 

First, is the matter of timing. A motion to reconsider must be made 
at the meeting where the item was first voted upon. A motion to 
reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body, however, can 
always vote to suspend the rules and, by a two-thirds majority, allow 
a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.)

Second, a motion to reconsider may be made only by certain 
members of the body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider may be 
made only by a member who voted in the majority on the original 
motion. If such a member has a change of heart, he or she may 
make the motion to reconsider (any other member of the body 
— including a member who voted in the minority on the original 
motion — may second the motion). If a member who voted in the 
minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled 
out of order. The purpose of this rule is finality. If a member of 
minority could make a motion to reconsider, then the item could be 
brought back to the body again and again, which would defeat the 
purpose of finality. 

If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back 
before the body, and a new original motion is in order. The matter may 
be discussed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time. 

California, as another example, resolutions or orders for the payment of 
money and all ordinances require a recorded vote of the total members 
of the city council. (California Government Code Section 36936.) Cities 
with charters may prescribe their own vote requirements. Local elected 
officials are always well-advised to consult with their local agency 
counsel on how state law may affect the vote count.

After consulting state statutes, step number two is to check the rules 
of the body. If the rules of the body say that you count votes of “those 
present” then you treat abstentions one way. However, if the rules of 
the body say that you count the votes of those “present and voting,” 
then you treat abstentions a different way. And if the rules of the 
body are silent on the subject, then the general rule of thumb (and 
default rule) is that you count all votes that are “present and voting.” 

Accordingly, under the “present and voting” system, you would NOT 
count abstention votes on the motion. Members who abstain are 
counted for purposes of determining quorum (they are “present”), 
but you treat the abstention votes on the motion as if they did not 
exist (they are not “voting”). On the other hand, if the rules of the 
body specifically say that you count votes of those “present” then you 
DO count abstention votes both in establishing the quorum and on 
the motion. In this event, the abstention votes act just like “no” votes.

How does this work in practice?  
Here are a few examples.

Assume that a five-member city council is voting on a motion that 
requires a simple majority vote to pass, and assume further that the 
body has no specific rule on counting votes. Accordingly, the default 
rule kicks in and we count all votes of members that are “present and 
voting.” If the vote on the motion is 3-2, the motion passes. If the 
motion is 2-2 with one abstention, the motion fails. 

Assume a five-member city council voting on a motion that requires 
a two-thirds majority vote to pass, and further assume that the body 
has no specific rule on counting votes. Again, the default rule applies. 
If the vote is 3-2, the motion fails for lack of a two-thirds majority. If 
the vote is 4-1, the motion passes with a clear two-thirds majority. A 
vote of three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain” also results in passage 
of the motion. Once again, the abstention is counted only for the 
purpose of determining quorum, but on the actual vote on the 
motion, it is as if the abstention vote never existed — so an effective 
3-1 vote is clearly a two-thirds majority vote. 

Now, change the scenario slightly. Assume the same five-member 
city council voting on a motion that requires a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass, but now assume that the body DOES have a specific rule 
requiring a two-thirds vote of members “present.” Under this specific 
rule, we must count the members present not only for quorum but 
also for the motion. In this scenario, any abstention has the same 
force and effect as if it were a “no” vote. Accordingly, if the votes were 
three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain,” then the motion fails. The 
abstention in this case is treated like a “no” vote and effective vote of 
3-2 is not enough to pass two-thirds majority muster. 



7

Appeal. If the chair makes a ruling that a member of the body 
disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of the chair. If the 
motion is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority 
vote, then the ruling of the chair is deemed reversed.

Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of saying, 
“return to the agenda.” If a member believes that the body has drifted 
from the agreed-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It does not 
require a vote, and when the chair discovers that the agenda has 
not been followed, the chair simply reminds the body to return to 
the agenda item properly before them. If the chair fails to do so, the 
chair’s determination may be appealed.

Withdraw a motion. During debate and discussion of a motion, 
the maker of the motion on the floor, at any time, may interrupt a 
speaker to withdraw his or her motion from the floor. The motion 
is immediately deemed withdrawn, although the chair may ask the 
person who seconded the motion if he or she wishes to make the 
motion, and any other member may make the motion if properly 
recognized.

Special Notes About Public Input
The rules outlined above will help make meetings very public-
friendly. But in addition, and particularly for the chair, it is wise to 
remember three special rules that apply to each agenda item:

Rule One: Tell the public what the body will be doing.

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the body is doing it.

Rule Three: When the body has acted, tell the public what the 
body did.

Courtesy and Decorum
The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the 
members of the body and the members of the public can attend to 
business efficiently, fairly and with full participation. At the same 
time, it is up to the chair and the members of the body to maintain 
common courtesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very informal, 
it is always best for only one person at a time to have the floor, and 
it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the chair 
before proceeding to speak.

The chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an 
agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in question, not the 
personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, 
debate on personalities is not. The chair has the right to cut off 
discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the 
interest of time, the chair may, however, limit the time allotted to 
speakers, including members of the body.

Can a member of the body interrupt the speaker? The general rule is 
“no.” There are, however, exceptions. A speaker may be interrupted 
for the following reasons:

Privilege. The proper interruption would be, “point of privilege.” 
The chair would then ask the interrupter to “state your point.” 
Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would 
interfere with the normal comfort of the meeting. For example, the 
room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere 
with a person’s ability to hear.

Order. The proper interruption would be, “point of order.” Again, 
the chair would ask the interrupter to “state your point.” Appropriate 
points of order relate to anything that would not be considered 
appropriate conduct of the meeting. For example, if the chair moved 
on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that 
discussion or debate.



1400 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
(916) 658-8200   |   Fax (916) 658-8240

www.cacities.org

To order additional copies of this publication, call (916) 658-8200.

$10 

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

 Printed on recycled paper.



AGENDA ITEM #2



AGENDA ITEM: 2 
 
MEETING DATE: May 20, 2024 
 
I. NATURE OF ITEM 
 

Consideration of Proposed Annexation of 801 Poinsettia Way A.P.N. 067-030-
041 

 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Tom Wahlquist, the owner of 801 Poinsettia Way, requested a Sewer Service 
Availability (SSA) letter on October 7, 2022.  The SSA letter was issued on 
October 19, 2022.  There is an existing single-family residence (SFR) on the 
property, and Mr. Wahlquist plans to propose the construction of an accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU).  There is an existing District sewer line on Cathedral Oaks 
Road that could serve the property.   
 
The 1.41-acre parcel located at the northwest corner of Cathedral Oaks Road 
and Poinsettia Way, is currently within the District’s service area (sphere of 
influence) but is not annexed to the District.  Mr. Wahlquist submitted an 
application to LAFCO for District sewer service on April 30, 2024.  Mr. Wahlquist 
proposes to connect one existing SFR and one proposed ADU.  The parcel is 
currently being served by a septic system.   
 
Staff received a letter from LAFCO dated May 1, 2024, requesting District review 
of the proposed annexation.  A copy of the letter is attached to this report and is 
presented herein for Board consideration. 

 
III. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
It is the District’s understanding that Mr. Wahlquist is preparing the LAFCO 
submittals required for the annexation to bring the property into the District 
boundary and jurisdiction.   
 
This is a straightforward annexation boundary adjustment proposal for a single-
family residential lot.  Staff has reviewed the proposal and has prepared an SSA 
letter with standard conditions.  As such, staff recommends the Board authorize 
the General Manager to inform LAFCO that the District does not object to the 
proposed annexation. 

 
IV. REFERENCE MATERIAL  

 
LAFCO Letter Dated May 1, 2024  
 
Parcel Map 



Commissioners: Jay Freeman, Chair  Craig Geyer   Joan Hartmann    James Kyriaco  Jorge Magana     Bob Nelson       
  Jenelle Osborne    Alice Patino, Vice-Chair    Jim Richardson    Shane Stark     Das Williams Executive Officer:  Mike Prater 

LAFCO  
Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission 

105 East Anapamu Street  Santa Barbara CA  93101 
805/568-3391  FAX 805/568-2249 
www.sblafco.org  lafco@sblafco.org 

 
May 1, 2024 
 
Steve Wagner, General Manager 
Goleta Sanitary District 
One William Moffett Place 
Goleta, CA 93117 

Subject: 801 POINSETTIA WAY – Annexation to the Goleta Sanitary District (LAFCO № 24-01) 

Dear Steve Wagner: 
 
A petition has been submitted to the Santa Barbara County Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCO) proposing the annexation of territory to the Goleta Sanitary District. A copy of the 
proposal is attached to this letter for LAFCO Proceeding № 24-01. This proposal will annex land 
to your district. 
 
The above-titled application has been filed with LAFCO on April 30, 2024. This notice is pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 56658 (b) and 56662 (c).  The Proposed Project includes annexation 
of approximately 1.41 acres of property into the Goleta Sanitary District for sewer service. The 
property is within the sphere of influence and are located at 801 Poinsettia Way north of Cathedral 
Oaks Road. 
 
We request that you review these documents and notify us of any questions, comments, concerns 
or conditions you have. If you identify conditions for this project, please explain why they are 
necessary. We also welcome any additional comments you wish to make concerning this proposal. 
 
By state law your district has 60 days in which to request termination of these proceeding pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 56857. Please respond with your comments before June 30, 2024. 
Your input will be considered in the preparation of the staff report that will be presented to LAFCO. 
  
This proposal will be on LAFCO’s May 2, 2024 agenda for information purposes only. You will 
be notified in advance before LAFCO considers the merits of the proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Mike Prater 
Executive Officer 

 
Attachments: 
Petition, Questionnaire, Map and Legal 

http://www.sblafco.org/
http://www.sblafco.org/
http://www.sblafco.org/






































CP=1
EL=500.00
CP/SPK

CP=2
EL=485.89
CP/SPK

CP=3
EL=516.43
CP/SPK

CP=4
EL=494.61
CP/SPK

OF

801 POINSETTIA WAY
SANTA BARBARA CA 93111

APN: 067-030-041

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEYREV. NO. DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES DATE

P
RO

F E
SS

IONAL LAND
SURV

EYO
R

No.   8226

ERIC J. ACKERMAN

AI
NROFILACFO

ET

AT
S

MAY 1, 2018

THIS WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S ACT.

SHEET 1 OF 1

SCALE: 1" = 10'

0 10 20 30 40

N

DRAWING NAME:  000463TOPO01.DWG
DATE OF WORK PERFORMED: 2018-04-16
LAYOUT NAME:  30X40
ORIG. DATE: 2018-04-04
POINT FILE: 000463CP.CRD
DRAWN BY: AF

REQUEST OF: MR. TOM WAHLQUIST
ADDRESS: 801 POINSETTIA WAY

SANTA BARBARA CA 93111
PHONE: 805-452-9462
EMAIL: TOM@WALPOLECPA.COM

GROMATICI LAND SURVEYING, INC.
LOS OLIVOS * GOLETA
2432 RAILWAY AVE, SUITES I & J, LOS OLIVOS, CA 93441
MAIL: PO BOX 650, LOS OLIVOS, CA 93441
805-691-9112 PHONE * 866-610-1045 FAX
INFO@GROMATICI.COM * WWW.GROMATICI.COM

PARCEL INFORMATION

SITE

SURVEYOR'S NOTES
THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED ON APRIL 16, 2018 AT THE REQUEST OF TOM WAHLQUIST
AT A SCALE OF 1" = 10' WITH A 1 FOOT CONTOUR INTERVAL.  THE BOUNDARY SHOWN
HEREON IS NOT A COMPLETE BOUNDARY SURVEY.

NO UNWRITTEN RIGHTS HAVE BEEN DEPICTED HEREON OR OPINIONS REGARDING
UNWRITTEN RIGHTS HAVE BEEN NOTED.

BASIS OF BEARINGS:  THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE FOUND
MONUMENTS ALONG THE  BOUNDARY LINE  HAVING A CALCULATED BEARING OF

301.

LOCAL BENCHMARK:  THE BENCHMARK FOR THIS SURVEY IS POINT 1 AS LISTED HEREON
HAVING AN ELEVATION OF 500.00'.

VERTICAL DATUM:  THE VERTICAL DATUM FOR THIS SURVEY IS ASSUMED.

ALL ELEVATIONS AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN U.S. SURVEY FEET.

R1 = RECORD DATA PER RECORD OF SURVEY FILED IN BOOK 63, PAGE 57 OF RECORD
OF SURVEYS.

RECORD DATA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
ALL THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

A PORTION OF LOT 11 MARKED "HELEN HILL" IN CLASS OR DIVISION "B" OF THE RANCHO
LA GOLETA, IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PARTITIONED TO HELENA HILL, BY DECREE OF PROBATE COURT,
OF SAID COUNTY ON FEBRUARY 1, 1868, IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF DANIEL A.
HILL, DECEASED AS SHOWN ON THE MAP ACCOMPANYING THE COMMISSIONER'S
REPORT IN SAID MATTER, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED IN
THE DEED TO G.L. BEAN AND LELA A. BEAN HIS WIFE, RECORDED OCTOBER 15, 1921, IN
BOOK 193, PAGE 385, OF DEEDS RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, SAID POINT BEING
DESIGNATED AS POST NO. 24, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID LOT ELEVEN (11), THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BEAN TRACT, NORTH

SURVEY PIPE AND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT OF LAND HEREIN
DESCRIBED THENCE

CONTINUING

BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A DELTA OF

NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE 43.93 FEET TO A 2 INCH SURVEY
MONUMENT SET ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN
THE RIGHT OF WAY GRANT TO THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, RECORDED MARCH
31, 1961 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 11057, IN BOOK 1837, PAGE 742 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS,

THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID BEAN TRACT, SAID POINT BEING ALSO THE
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY IN POINSETTIA WAY (FORMERLY
CATHEDRAL OAKS ROAD), A COUNTY ROAD OF VARIOUS WIDTHS, THENCE ALONG
THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID BEAN TRACT AND THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID

VICINITY MAP
NO SCALE

801 POINSETTIA WAY
SANTA BARBARA CA 93111

 APN: 067-030-041

SANITARY SEWER
WATER

ADDRESS: 801 POINSETTIA WAY
SANTA BARBARA CA 93111

APN:  067-030-041
SIZE: 1.41 ACRES PER COUNTY ASSESSOR
ZONING: 1-E-1

ADJACENT BOUNDARY
MEASURED BOUNDARY

GAS METER

WATER METER

POWER POLE

DOWN SPOUT

TREE WITH TRUNK DIAMETER

TREE DRIPLINE (ACTUAL SIZE)

BRICK SURFACE

BUILDING

CONCRETE SURFACE

CENTERLINE
CHAIN LINK FENCE

LEGAL CENTERLINE

BOUNDARY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

OVERHEAD WIRE

THESE STANDARD SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS MAY BE FOUND IN THE DRAWING

LEGEND

AC ASPHALTIC CONCRETE
APN ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER
BC BRASS CAP
BFP BACK FLOW PREVENTER
BK BOOK
BW BACK OF WALK
BLK BLOCK
CLF CHAIN LINK FENCE
CONC CONCRETE
CP CONTROL POINT
DI DROP INLET
EBOX ELECTRICAL BOX
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRIC
FF FINISH SURFACE
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FL FLOWLINE
FNC FENCE
FS FINISH SURFACE
GM GAS METER
GR GAS RISER
HB HOSE BIB
ICV IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE
IP IRON PIPE
LP LAMP POST
M MEASURED
MH MANHOLE
NG NATURAL GROUND
PB PULL BOX
PG PAGE
PVMT PAVEMENT
R RECORD DATA
RR RAILROAD RAIL
ROW RIGHT OF WAY
RD ROOF DRAIN
RSR RISER
SCO SEWER CLEANOUT
SMH SEWER MANHOLE
TRANS TRANSFORMER
TC TOP OF CURB
VLT VAULT

RIGHT-OF-WAY

FOUND MONUMENT PER R1

SEARCHED; NOTHING FOUND OR SET

SET MONUMENT

SPOT ELEVATION TICK

SPOT ELEVATION TICK

SPOT ELEVATION LEADER

SPOT ELEVATION AT DECIMAL

GROMATICI CONTROL ONLY

romatici
Land Surveying, Inc.

BOUNDARY DISCLAIMER
THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM PUBLIC RECORDS ONLY THAT MAY
INCLUDE PREVIOUS SURVEYS OR SIMPLY THE VESTING DEED.  THESE MAY HAVE
CONSIDERABLE ERRORS IN THEM.  THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN HEREON ARE NOT BASED
UPON A FIELD SURVEY UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. ONLY MINIMAL FIELD TIES WERE
PERFORMED.  THAT MEANS THAT THIS SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY MEASURED EACH
CORNER OF THE PARCEL, NOR HAVE INVESTIGATIONS BEEN DONE REGARDING GAPS OR
OVERLAPS IN OWNERSHIP OR CHAIN OF TITLE RESEARCH.  THEY ARE SHOWN FOR
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

811 POINSETTIA WAY
SANTA BARBARA CA 93111

 APN: 067-030-040

CATHEDRAL OAKS RD

N
 P

A
TT

ER
SO

N
 A

V
E

N
 S

A
N

 M
A

RC
O

S 
RD

POINSETTIA RD

101 FWY



AGENDA ITEM #3



AGENDA ITEM: 3 
 
MEETING DATE: May 20, 2024 
 
I. NATURE OF ITEM 

Discussion and Action on Annual Audit Services Contract 
 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Moss, Levy and Hartzheim (MLH) of Santa Maria was hired to prepare the 
District’s annual audit and review its financial statements from 2013 until 2018.  
In 2018 the District elected to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 (FY18) audit services and engaged Fechter & Company 
CPAs (Fechter) from the list of respondents.  While Fechter is a qualified audit 
services firm and completed the District’s FY18 audit report, staff had some 
difficulties with their process and found that they were not quick to correct 
errors once identified.  As such, the Board supported re-hiring MLH for audit 
services for FY19, and MLH has continued to complete the District’s annual 
audit since.  Staff is recommending MLH be hired once again to complete the 
FY24 audit.  This would be the sixth consecutive year that MLH’s partner, Adam 
Guise, has served as the lead. 

 
MLH has been serving many local agencies for over 40 years and performed 
well for the District.  District staff attached the proposal from MLH for FY24 audit 
services for Board consideration and approval. 

 
Assembly Bill 1345 added section 12410.6.(b) to Government Code regarding 
auditor rotation requirements of public accounting firms providing audit 
services to local agencies. 

 
Government Code section 12410.6.(b) indicates that commencing in FY14, a 
local agency shall not employ a public accounting firm to provide audit services 
to a local agency if the lead audit partner or coordinating audit partner having 
primary responsibility for the audit, or the audit partner responsible for reviewing 
the audit, has performed audit services for that local agency for six consecutive 
fiscal years.  For purposes of calculating the six consecutive fiscal years, the 
local agency shall not take into account any time that a public accounting firm 
was employed by that local agency prior to FY14.  The Controller may waive 
this requirement if he or she finds that another eligible public accounting firm is 
not available to perform the audit. 

III. COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends the Board direct the General Manager to retain MLH to 
conduct the District's annual audit for FY23-24 as described in the attached 
proposal from MLH. 



IV. REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Proposal from MLH 
 



  

 

 
May 9, 2024 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Goleta Sanitary District 
1 Moffett Place 
Goleta, CA 93117 
 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Goleta Sanitary District for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit the financial statements of the business-type activities including the major fund and the disclosures, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Goleta Sanitary District as of and for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2024. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide 
for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
supplement the District’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the District’s RSI in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited 
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient appropriate evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required 
by GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

2) Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

3) Schedule of Pension Contributions 

4) Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

5) Schedule of OPEB Contributions 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when 
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS 
and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the 
financial statements. 

The objectives also include reporting on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on 
the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of 
your accounting records of Goleta Sanitary District and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to 



 

express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) 
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the 
government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect 
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material 
errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform 
the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our 
attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions.  We will also request 
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.  

Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.  

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to the 
audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. Tests of controls may be performed to test the 
effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are 
material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and 
other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if 
performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, 
no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 

 



 

 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of Goleta Sanitary District in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by 
you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services 
will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  We will perform the services in 
accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement 
services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any 
procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and 
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation 
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed 
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility 
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing, 
implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; 
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly 
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and 
application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all 
accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements.  

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information 
available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of 
the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of 
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, 
and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted 
access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  At the 
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the 
financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other 
responsibilities required by GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely 
and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or 
grant agreements that we report.  

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report 
on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). You 
agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we 
have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements with 
any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial 



 

statements readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary 
information is issued with our report thereon]. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance 
with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in 
accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in 
the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any 
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary 
information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed 
in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective 
actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views 
on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the 
report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request 
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

We will provide copies of our reports to the District; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and 
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to [Name of Regulator]  or its 
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for 
the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We 
will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of 
selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend or decide to distribute the 
copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report 
release date. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will 
contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Adam V. Guise is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 15, 
2024 and to issue our reports no later than November 30, 2024.  

Our fee for services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including 
expenses, will not exceed $16,800. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility 
involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be 
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, 
work may be suspended if your account becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your 
account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to 
have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will 
be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the 
date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption 
that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Goleta Sanitary District’s financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to management and the Board of Directors of Goleta Sanitary District. Circumstances 
may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. 
Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a 



 

 

separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, 
withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.  

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government 
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will state (1) that the 
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, 
and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Goleta Sanitary District is subject to 
an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not 
satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Goleta Sanitary District and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us.  

 

Very truly yours, 
 

 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Goleta Sanitary District.  

 

Management signature:    

Title:    

Date:    

 

Governance signature:    

Title:    

Date:    

 



GENERAL MANAGER’S

REPORT



GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
The following summary report describes the District’s activities from May 7, 2024, through 
May 20, 2024.  It provides updated information on significant activities under three major 
categories: Collection System, Treatment/Reclamation and Disposal Facilities, and General 
and Administration Items. 
 
1. COLLECTION SYSTEM REPORT 

 
LINES CLEANING  
Staff have been conducting priority lines cleaning throughout the District.  Staff have also 
been conducting routine lines cleaning in the area of North Patterson Ave. and University 
Dr. 
 
CCTV INSPECTION 
Staff have been conducting routine Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspections in the 
area of South San Marcos Rd. and Hollister Ave. 
 
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE 
Staff replaced the oil on three rotating sewer cleaning nozzles.  All Collections staff were 
involved for training purposes. 
 
 

2. TREATMENT, RECLAMATION AND DISPOSAL FACILITIES REPORT  
Plant flows for the month of May 2024 so far have averaged 5.2 million gallons a day.  
The Reclamation Plant was put online April 4, 2024 and there have been no issues at this 
time. 
 
The notice of completion for the Influent Pump Station rehabilitation project has been 
recorded and returned.  The final retention payment had been issued formally closing out 
the project.  
 
Installation of the new laser flow meter for the influent line continues to be postponed due 
to high flows.  Estimated timeline for installation and calibration is late May 2024. 
Construction of the Biosolids and Energy (BESP) Phase 1 project continues.  Current 
construction activities include the construction of new underground electrical duct banks 
and site preparation for the Combined Heat and Power equipment pad.  
 
The Operations staff has been continuing with Plant clean up and fixing the Secondary 
Clarifiers.  Maintenance staff is continuing work on the preventative maintenance tasks 
and other miscellaneous repair projects around the Plant. 
 
Goleta West Sanitary District brought their 24” force-main online on May 1, 2024, in 
accordance with a recommissioning plan shared with the District.  Staff assisted by 
monitoring the headworks and by tracking influent flows in SCADA.  GWSD will perform 
daily walks of their force-main until further notice. 
 
 



General Manager’s Report 
May 20, 2024 
Page 2 
 

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\GMR 2024\2024-05-20 GMR.docx 

PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 
Members of the Collections, Administration, Maintenance, and the Plant Operations 
departments staff interacted with the public at the annual Earth Day Festival on April 27-
28, 2024, in Alameda Park in Santa Barbara.  Visitors totaled 493 on Saturday and 413 on 
Sunday, for a total of 906 attendees who visited the Goleta Sanitary District’s booth and 
learned about our environmental work. 
 

3. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
Financial Report  
The District account balances as of May 20, 2024, shown below, are approximations to 
the nearest dollar and indicate the overall funds available to the District at this time.  
 

Operating Checking Accounts:     $       536,912 
Investment Accounts:   $  38,116,348 
Total District Funds:   $  38,653,260 

 
The following transactions are reported herein for the period 05/07/24 – 05/20/24 
 

Regular, Overtime, Cash-outs, and Net Payroll:   $       137,932 
Claims:         $       338,968 

 
Total Expenditures:        $       476,901 
Total Deposits:        $           5,578 

 
Transfers of funds: 
 
 LAIF to Community West Bank Operational (CWB):   $                - 0 - 

CWB Operational to CWB Money Market:   $                - 0 - 
CWB Money Market to CWB Operational:   $                - 0 - 
CWB Operational to CA-Class Investment Account  $                - 0 - 
CA-Class Investment Account to CWB Operational  $                - 0 - 

 
The District’s investments comply with the District’s Investment Policy adopted per 
Resolution No. 16-606.  The District has adequate funds to meet the next six months of 
normal operating expenses. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
LAIF Monthly Statement – Previously reported. 
LAIF Quarterly Report – Previously reported. 
PMIA/LAIF Performance – April, 2024 
PMIA Effective Yield – April, 2024 
 
CA-Class Investment Account  
CA-Class Investment Account – Previously reported. 
 



General Manager’s Report 
May 20, 2024 
Page 3 
 

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\GMR 2024\2024-05-20 GMR.docx 

Community West Bank (CWB)  
CWB Money Market and ICS Accounts – Previously reported. 
 
Deferred Compensation Accounts 
CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation Plan – April, 2024 
Lincoln 457 Deferred Compensation Plan – Previously reported. 

 
 Personnel Update 

A verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 
 
 



April 4.272
March 4.232

February 4.122
January 4.012

December 3.929
November 3.843

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 4.30

 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00011755619077389

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.27

PMIA Average Life(1): 226

 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.994191267

PMIA Daily(1): 4.22

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 4.12

Treasuries
58.24%

Agencies
22.16%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

9.23%

Time 
Deposits

3.25%

Commercial
Paper
6.47%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.43%

Loans
0.22%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that 
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 5/8/24

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 03/31/24

Chart does not include $2,005,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

3/31/24
$156.5 billion

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


Home ->> PMIA ->> PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields
Max: 12.844

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields Min: 0.203

YEAR Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

05/09/24

1982 11.683 12.044 11.835 11.773 12.270 11.994 12.235 11.909 11.151 11.111 10.704 10.401
1983 10.251 9.887 9.688 9.868 9.527 9.600 9.879 10.076 10.202 10.182 10.164 10.227
1984 10.312 10.280 10.382 10.594 10.843 11.119 11.355 11.557 11.597 11.681 11.474 11.024
1985 10.579 10.289 10.118 10.025 10.180 9.743 9.656 9.417 9.572 9.482 9.488 9.371
1986 9.252 9.090 8.958 8.621 8.369 8.225 8.141 7.844 7.512 7.586 7.432 7.439
1987 7.365 7.157 7.205 7.044 7.294 7.289 7.464 7.562 7.712 7.825 8.121 8.071
1988 8.078 8.050 7.945 7.940 7.815 7.929 8.089 8.245 8.341 8.397 8.467 8.563
1989 8.698 8.770 8.870 8.992 9.227 9.204 9.056 8.833 8.801 8.771 8.685 8.645
1990 8.571 8.538 8.506 8.497 8.531 8.538 8.517 8.382 8.333 8.321 8.269 8.279
1991 8.164 8.002 7.775 7.666 7.374 7.169 7.098 7.072 6.859 6.719 6.591 6.318
1992 6.122 5.863 5.680 5.692 5.379 5.323 5.235 4.958 4.760 4.730 4.659 4.647
1993 4.678 4.649 4.624 4.605 4.427 4.554 4.438 4.472 4.430 4.380 4.365 4.384
1994 4.359 4.176 4.248 4.333 4.434 4.623 4.823 4.989 5.106 5.243 5.380 5.528
1995 5.612 5.779 5.934 5.960 6.008 5.997 5.972 5.910 5.832 5.784 5.805 5.748
1996 5.698 5.643 5.557 5.538 5.502 5.548 5.587 5.566 5.601 5.601 5.599 5.574
1997 5.583 5.575 5.580 5.612 5.634 5.667 5.679 5.690 5.707 5.705 5.715 5.744
1998 5.742 5.720 5.680 5.672 5.673 5.671 5.652 5.652 5.639 5.557 5.492 5.374
1999 5.265 5.210 5.136 5.119 5.086 5.095 5.178 5.225 5.274 5.391 5.484 5.639
2000 5.760 5.824 5.851 6.014 6.190 6.349 6.443 6.505 6.502 6.517 6.538 6.535
2001 6.372 6.169 5.976 5.760 5.328 4.958 4.635 4.502 4.288 3.785 3.526 3.261
2002 3.068 2.967 2.861 2.845 2.740 2.687 2.714 2.594 2.604 2.487 2.301 2.201
2003 2.103 1.945 1.904 1.858 1.769 1.697 1.653 1.632 1.635 1.596 1.572 1.545
2004 1.528 1.440 1.474 1.445 1.426 1.469 1.604 1.672 1.771 1.890 2.003 2.134
2005 2.264 2.368 2.542 2.724 2.856 2.967 3.083 3.179 3.324 3.458 3.636 3.808
2006 3.955 4.043 4.142 4.305 4.563 4.700 4.849 4.946 5.023 5.098 5.125 5.129
2007 5.156 5.181 5.214 5.222 5.248 5.250 5.255 5.253 5.231 5.137 4.962 4.801
2008 4.620 4.161 3.777 3.400 3.072 2.894 2.787 2.779 2.774 2.709 2.568 2.353
2009 2.046 1.869 1.822 1.607 1.530 1.377 1.035 0.925 0.750 0.646 0.611 0.569
2010 0.558 0.577 0.547 0.588 0.560 0.528 0.531 0.513 0.500 0.480 0.454 0.462
2011 0.538 0.512 0.500 0.588 0.413 0.448 0.381 0.408 0.378 0.385 0.401 0.382
2012 0.385 0.389 0.383 0.367 0.363 0.358 0.363 0.377 0.348 0.340 0.324 0.326
2013 0.300 0.286 0.285 0.264 0.245 0.244 0.267 0.271 0.257 0.266 0.263 0.264
2014 0.244 0.236 0.236 0.233 0.228 0.228 0.244 0.260 0.246 0.261 0.261 0.267
2015 0.262 0.266 0.278 0.283 0.290 0.299 0.320 0.330 0.337 0.357 0.374 0.400
2016 0.446 0.467 0.506 0.525 0.552 0.576 0.588 0.614 0.634 0.654 0.678 0.719
2017 0.751 0.777 0.821 0.884 0.925 0.978 1.051 1.084 1.111 1.143 1.172 1.239
2018 1.350 1.412 1.524 1.661 1.755 1.854 1.944 1.998 2.063 2.144 2.208 2.291
2019 2.355 2.392 2.436 2.445 2.449 2.428 2.379 2.341 2.280 2.190 2.103 2.043
2020 1.967 1.912 1.787 1.648 1.363 1.217 0.920 0.784 0.685 0.620 0.576 0.540
2021 0.458 0.407 0.357 0.339 0.315 0.262 0.221 0.221 0.206 0.203 0.203 0.212
2022 0.234 0.278 0.365 0.523 0.684 0.861 1.090 1.276 1.513 1.772 2.007 2.173
2023 2.425 2.624 2.831 2.870 2.993 3.167 3.305 3.434 3.534 3.670 3.843 3.929
2024 4.012 4.122 4.232 4.272



Document Summary

CalPERS 457 Plan
April 30, 2024

This document includes important information to help you compare the investment options

under your retirement plan. If you want additional information about your investment options, 

you can go to https://calpers.voya.com.   

A free paper copy of the information available on the website can be obtained by contacting:

Voya Financial

Attn: CalPERS 457 Plan

P.O. Box 389

Hartford, CT 06141

(800) 260-0659

This document has two parts. Part I consists of performance information for the plan

investment options. This part shows you how well the investments have performed in the

past. Part I also shows the total annual operating expenses of each investment option.

Part II provides additional information concerning Plan administrative fees that

may be charged to your individual account.



 

Name of Fund / 3 1 5 10 Since Inception

   Name of Benchmark Month Year Years Years Inception Date As a % Per $1000

Equity Funds

State Street Russell All Cap Index Fund - Class I 3.97 22.07 12.14 11.48 11.98 10/07/13 0.25% $2.50

   Russell 3000 Index 4.03 22.30 12.43 11.81 12.32

State Street Global All Cap Equity ex-US Index Fund - Class I 3.57 8.50 4.95 3.86 4.23 10/07/13 0.26% $2.60

   MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net) 3.64 9.36 5.09 4.02 4.42

Fixed Income

State Street US ShortTerm Gov't/Credit Bond Index Fund - Class I -0.37 2.53 0.92 0.83 0.81 10/07/13 0.26% $2.60

   Bloomberg  US 1-3 yr Gov't/Credit Bond Index -0.30 2.79 1.24 1.24 1.23

State Street US Bond Fund Index - Class I -3.05 -1.68 -0.42 0.91 1.10 10/07/13 0.25% $2.50

   Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index -3.02 -1.47 -0.16 1.20 1.38

Real Assets

State Street Real Asset Fund - Class A 3.82 1.23 6.23 2.84 3.36 10/08/13 0.38% $3.80

   State Street Custom Benchmark
4

3.89 1.66 6.48 3.19 3.73

Cash (Cash Equivalents)

State Street STIF 1.31 5.41 1.96 - 1.34 09/02/14 0.27% $2.70

   ICE BofA US 3-Month Treasury Bill Index 1.29 5.36 2.07 - 1.47

Target Retirement Date Funds
5

CalPERS Target Income Fund -0.17 4.85 3.42 3.10 4.64 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP Income Policy Benchmark
6

-0.13 5.12 3.61 3.31 5.10

CalPERS Target Retirement 2020 0.27 6.22 4.51 3.69 6.23 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2020 Policy Benchmark
6

0.31 6.51 4.68 3.90 6.69

CalPERS Target Retirement 2025 1.08 8.52 5.62 4.58 7.15 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2025 Policy Benchmark
6

1.12 8.86 5.78 4.78 7.58

CalPERS Target Retirement 2030 1.80 10.45 6.54 5.23 8.01 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2030 Policy Benchmark
6

1.84 10.82 6.76 5.47 8.45

CalPERS Target Retirement 2035 2.53 12.67 7.59 5.99 8.79 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2035 Policy Benchmark
6

2.58 13.09 7.79 6.22 9.27

CalPERS Target Retirement 2040 3.30 14.87 8.52 6.70 9.41 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2040 Policy Benchmark
6

3.36 15.34 8.72 6.93 9.87

CalPERS Target Retirement 2045 3.60 15.61 8.71 7.06 9.63 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2045 Policy Benchmark
6

3.66 16.09 8.91 7.30 10.12

CalPERS Target Retirement 2050 3.60 15.61 8.71 7.06 9.69 12/01/08 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2050 Policy Benchmark
6

3.66 16.09 8.91 7.30 10.12

CalPERS Target Retirement 2055 3.60 15.61 8.71 7.07 7.39 10/07/13 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2055 Policy Benchmark
6

3.66 16.09 8.91 7.30 7.69

CalPERS Target Retirement 2060 3.60 15.61 8.70 - 9.57 11/01/18 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2060 Policy Benchmark
6

3.66 16.09 8.91 - 9.80

CalPERS Target Retirement 2065 3.60 15.61 - - 13.82 12/01/22 0.26% $2.60

   SIP 2065 Policy Benchmark
6

3.66 16.09 - - 14.38 -

Broad-Based Benchmarks
7

   Russell 3000 Index 4.03 22.30 12.43 11.81 - - - -

   MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net) 3.64 9.36 5.09 4.02 - - - -

   Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index -3.02 -1.47 -0.16 1.20 - - - -

Operating Expenses
3

Total Annual

CalPERS 457 PLAN

https://calpers.voya.com

Table 1 - Variable Net Return Investments

Performance Annualized Performance

Part I.  Performance Information For Periods Ended April 30, 2024

Table 1 focuses on the performance of investment options that do not have a fixed or stated rate of return. Table 1 shows how these options have performed over time 
and allows you to compare them with an appropriate benchmark for the same time periods 1. Past performance does not guarantee how the investment option will 
perform in the future. Your investment in these options could lose money. Information about an investment option's principal risks is available on the website listed 
above. 

Table 1 also shows the Total Annual Operating Expenses of each investment option. Total Annual Operating Expenses are expenses that reduce the rate of return of 
the investment option2. The cumulative effect of fees and expenses can substantially reduce the growth of your retirement savings. Visit the U.S. Department of 
Labor's website for an example showing the long-term fees and expenses at http://www.dol.gov/ebsa. Fees and expenses are only one of many factors to consider 
when you decide to invest in an option. You may also want to think about whether an investment in a particular option, along with your other investments, will help you 
achieve your financial goals.

https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/


Fee Amount Frequency
Who do you pay 

this fee to?
Description

$50 Per loan application Voya The charge covers the processing of your loan and applies 

each time you request a loan from your retirement account.  

This fee is deducted from your Plan account.

$35 ($8.75 

assessed 

quarterly)

Annual Voya The charge covers the maintenance costs of your loan and 

applies on a quarterly basis. This fee is deducted from your 

Plan account.

$50 Annual fee 

deducted monthly 

on a pro-rata basis

Voya Schwab Personal Choice Retirement Account is available to 

you if your Employer has elected it as an option. This fee is 

deducted pro rata on a monthly basis from your core fund 

investments
9
 in your CalPERS 457 account. For more 

information about SMAs, including a complete list of fees 

charged by Schwab for different types of investment 

transactions, please contact Schwab at (888) 393-PCRA 

(7272). Fees may also be incurred as a result of actual 

brokerage account trades. Before purchasing or selling any 

investment through the SMA, you should contact Schwab at 

(888) 393-PCRA (7272) to inquire about any fees, including 

any undisclosed fees, associated with the purchase or sale of 

such investment.

0.23%

($2.30 per 

$1,000)

Annual fee 

deducted monthly 

on a pro-rata basis

Voya The SMA Plan Administrative fee pays for recordkeeping costs 

for assets in your SMA account. This fee is deducted pro rata 

on a monthly basis from your core fund investments in your 

CalPERS 457 account. The SMA Plan Administrative Fee is 

subject to change based on total Plan assets.

 

#N/A

#N/A

from the Total Annual Operating Expenses of the Plan's investment options.

Part II. Explanation of CalPERS 457 Plan Expenses

https://calpers.voya.com

Table 2 provides information concerning Plan administrative fees and expenses that may be charged to your individual account if you take advantage

of certain features of the Plan. In addition to the fees and expenses described in Table 2 below, some of the Plan's administrative expenses are paid

April 30, 2024

Table 2 - Fees and Expenses

Individual Expenses
8

Service

Loan Origination Fee

Self-Managed Account (SMA) 

Maintenance Fee

Self-Managed Account (SMA) 

Plan Administrative Fee

Footnotes for Table 1 and Table 2:

Maintenance Fee 

(For loans taken on or after 

April 1, 2020)

1 Fund returns shown are net of investment management and administrative expenses and fees unless otherwise noted. Benchmark performance returns do not reflect 
any management fees, transaction costs or expenses. Benchmarks are unmanaged. You cannot invest directly in a benchmark.

2 Historical annual operating expenses are not available. Reported annual operating expenses are estimated based on SSGA investment management, Voya 
recordkeeping, and SSGA capped operating expenses.

3 Total annual operating expenses are comprised of investment management and administrative expenses and fees incurred by the funds.

4 State Street Real Asset Fund has a custom benchmark comprised of 25% Bloomberg Roll Select Commodity Index, 25% S&P® Global Large MidCap Commodity and 

Resources Index, 10% Dow Jones US Select REIT Index, 20% Bloomberg US Government Inflation-Linked 1-10 Year Bond Index, and 20% S&P Global 
Infrastructure Index.

5 If the ending market value (EMV) falls to zero in any one month, the inception date resets to the next month with an EMV. Performance is then calculated from the 
new inception date.

6 The benchmark for each Target Retirement Date Fund is a composite of asset class benchmarks that are weighted according to each Fund's policy target weights. 
The asset class benchmarks are Russell 3000 Index, MSCI ACWI ex-USA IMI Index (net), Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index, the SSGA customized benchmark for 
Real Assets (see footnote 4), and ICE BofA US 3-Month Treasury Bill Index.

7 Broad-based benchmarks grouped here provide comparative performance standards for domestic equity, international equity and fixed income.

8 The CalPERS Board of Administration periodically reviews the plan administrative fees and adjusts fees to reflect expenses incurred by the Plan. Participant fees are 
charged to reimburse CalPERS for actual administrative fees of the Plan.

9 Core fund investments are listed in Table 1 above the Target Retirement Date funds.  Core funds include: State Street Russell All Cap Index Fund (Class I), State 
Street Global All Cap Equity ex-US Index Fund (Class I), State Street US Short Term Government/Credit Bond Index Fund (Class I), State Street US Bond Fund Index 
(Class I), State Street Real Asset Fund (Class A), and State Street Short Term Investment Fund ("STIF"). 

https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/
https://calpers.voya.com/


 

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2024\Correspondence 2024\Correspondence Cover and Packet\2024-05-20 Correspondence Cover.doc 

 

 

Date:   Correspondence Sent To:   

1.  05/07/2024 Kirk Lagerquist, General Services Director  
   County of Santa Barbara  
   Subject:  Sewer Service Charge  

 Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024 
 
2.  05/10/2024 Steve Fort  
   Susanne Elledge Planning & Permitting Services, Inc.  
   Subject:  Sewer Service Availability  
   Proposed Public Restroom and Exterior Site Improvements  
   5677-5796 & 5652-5820 Calle Real Goleta, CA  

APNs:  069-110-058, 069-110-059, 069-110-067, 069-110-070, 069-110-
084, 069-110-085, 069-110-090, 069-110-093, 069-110-094, 069-110-095 
Owner:  Hill Goleta Family Limited Partnership and Cal Real North 
Developer: Towbes Group  

    
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hard Copies of the Correspondence are available at the District’s Office for review   
 
  

                                                
   

 

DISTRICT 
CORRESPONDENCE 

Board Meeting of May 20, 2024 
 

 


	Agenda 
	Minutes
	Agenda Item #1 
	Agenda Item #2
	Agenda Item #3
	GMR 
	Correspondence Recap

